
PAINT BRUSH HILLS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
Administrative Offices 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 

Lakewood, Colorado  80228-1898 
Tel: 303-987-0835    800-741-3254 

Fax: 303-987-2032 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA 
 

Board of Directors: Office: Term/Expires: 
Kim Griffin President 2014/May 2014 
Calvin Pollard Vice President 2016/May 2016 
Doug Burrer Treasurer 2016/May 2016 
Floyd Roberts Assistant Secretary 2014/May 2014 
John Bruszenski Assistant Secretary 2014/May 2014 
 
DATE:  October 10, 2013 
TIME:  7:00 p.m. 
PLACE: Paint Brush Hills Metropolitan District Office 

9830 Liberty Grove Drive 
Falcon, Colorado  80831 

 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
A. Present Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest. 

  
 

B. Approve Agenda. 
  

 
C. Public Comments.  (For items not on the agenda, only.  Comments limited to 3 

minutes per person and are taken in order listed on the sign-in sheet). 
  

 
D. CONSENT AGENDA – These items are considered to be routine and will be 

approved and/or ratified by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless a Board member so requests; in which event, the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in the Regular Agenda. 

 
 Acknowledge Manager’s Report (to be distributed under separate cover).  
 Acknowledge Staff Report (to be distributed). 
 Acknowledge Billing Report (to be distributed). 
 Acknowledge Operations Report (to be distributed). 
 Review and approve Minutes of the September 26, 2013 special meeting 

(enclosure). 
  

  



Paint Brush Hills Metropolitan District 
October 10, 2013 Agenda 
Page 2 
 
 
II. FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Review and approve the payment of claims for the period ending October 10, 
2013, as follows (to be distributed): 

 
General Fund: $  
Debt Service Fund: $  
Enterprise Fund: $  
Total: $  
  
 

 
B. Discuss status of the 2012 Audit. 

  
 

C. Review and accept unaudited financial statements for the period ending 
September 30, 2013 (to be distributed). 
  

 
D. Review revised draft Fiscal Year 2014 Budget document and review and discuss 

the 2014 draft Budget (to be distributed). 
  

 
III. LEGAL MATTERS 
 

A. Discuss Woodmen Hills Metropolitan District’s notice of rate increase for 
wastewater treatment (2014 rate is $22.16/month) (enclosure). 
  

 
IV. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 

A. Discuss waiver of late fees and who is authorized to do so.  
  

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Discuss future Agenda items. 
  

 
B.   

 
VI. ADJOURNMENT THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR 

NOVEMBER 21, 2013 – BUDGET HEARING. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 1 9/26/2013 

  MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

PAINT BRUSH HILLS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
HELD 

SEPTEMBER 26, 2013 
 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors (referred to hereafter as “Board”) of 
the Paint Brush Hills Metropolitan District (referred to hereafter as “District”) 
was held on Thursday, the 26th day of September, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. at the Paint 
Brush Hills Metropolitan District Office, 9830 Liberty Grove Drive, Falcon, 
Colorado 80831.  The meeting was open to the public. 
  
 

ATTENDANCE 
 

 Directors In Attendance Were: 
Kim Griffin, President 
Calvin Pollard 
Doug Burrer 
Floyd Roberts 
John Bruszenski 
 
Also In Attendance Were: 
Leon Gomes; Special District Management Services, Inc. 
 
Pat Hrbacek, Esq.; Forbush Legal Offices, P.C. 
 
Clint Bulkley; Osborne, Parsons & Rosacker, LLP 
 
See attached sign-in sheet for additional attendees. 
  
 

DISCLOSURE OF 
POTENTIAL 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest:  The Board discussed the 
requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any potential 
conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the Board of 
Directors and to the Secretary of State.  Mr. Gomes noted that disclosure 
statements were filed for applicable Directors at least 72 hours prior to the 
meeting.  Mr. Gomes also noted that a quorum was present and requested 
members of the Board to disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard 
to any matters scheduled for discussion at this meeting, and incorporated for the 
record those applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior to this 
meeting in accordance with statute. 
  
 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 2 9/26/2013 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS 

 Agenda:  Mr. Gomes reviewed with the Board a proposed Agenda for the 
District’s special meeting. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, seconded by 
Director Pollard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Agenda was approved, 
as amended. 
 
Public Comments:  Resident Becky Bonilla commented on the Waterbury Drive 
cut.  Ms. Bonilla expressed concern that it was a hazard and safety issue.  She 
was referred to the El Paso County Department of Transportation. 
 
Ms. Bonilla requested that the Rules and Regulations and Service Plan for the 
District be posted on the District’s website. 
 
David and Monika Wells thanked the District for assisting with the dumping 
problem near their home. 
  
 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 

 Consent Agenda:  The Board considered the following actions: 
 

 Acknowledge Manager’s Report 
 Acknowledge Staff Report 
 Acknowledge Billing Report 
 Acknowledge Operations Report 
 Review and approve Minutes of the August 15, 2013 regular meeting and 

the September 5, 2013 special meeting 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, seconded by 
Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the 
consent agenda. 
  
 

LEGAL MATTERS  Meridian Service Metropolitan District Ground Water Commission Case 
No. 12-GW-10, Water Commission Hearing on August 16, 2013 and 
Meridian Ranch Legal Issues; Preliminary Review of Paint Brush Hills 
Filing 13A and Paint Brush Hills 13 Master Plan Exhibit, County File No. 
SF-13-003; Correspondence to Meridian Service Metropolitan District 
Indicating the District’s Right to a Portion of the 2 Cubic Feet per Second of 
Treated Return Flow Decreed Under Case No. 05CW43; Interconnect 
Agreement between the District and Meridian Service Metropolitan District; 
Ground Water Commission Case No. 10CW95; and Possible 
Correspondence to Meridian Service Metropolitan District regarding the 
Source of the 85 Acre Feet to be Provided to the District - EXECUTIVE 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 3 9/26/2013 

SESSION:  Pursuant to Sections 24-6-402(4)(b) and (e), C.R.S., upon motion 
duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded by Director Pollard and, upon an 
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the quorum present, the Board convened 
in executive session at 8:42 p.m. for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice 
from the Authority’s attorney concerning negotiations, as authorized by Sections 
24-6-402(4)(b) and (e), C.R.S. 
 
The Board reconvened in regular session at 9:07 p.m.  
  
 

FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 

 2012 Audit:  Mr. Clint Bulkley, the District’s Auditor, updated the Board on the 
status of the 2012 Audit.  Mr. Bulkley requested the Board consider approval of a 
second request for extension of time to file the audit with the State Auditor. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded 
by Director Pollard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board authorized 
Mr. Bulkley to file a second request for extension of time (60 days) to file the 
2012 Audit with the State Auditor. 
 
Claims:  The Board considered approval of the payment of claims for the 
period ending September 26, 2013, as follows: 
 

General Fund $ 95,403.97 
Debt Service Fund $ -0- 
Enterprise Fund $ 38,484.81 
Total Claims: $ 133,888.78 

 
Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, 
seconded by Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board 
approved the payment of claims for the period ending September 26, 2013, as 
presented. 
 
Financial Statements:  Mr. Gomes reviewed with the Board the unaudited 
financial statements for the period ending August 31, 2013. 
 
Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director 
Bruszenski, seconded by Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, 
the Board accepted the unaudited financial statements for the period ending 
August 31, 2013, as presented. 
 
Resolution No. 2013-09-01, Resolution regarding Issuance of Farmers State 
Bank Fleet Cards (“Resolution No. 2013-09-01”):  The Board entered into 
discussion regarding Resolution No. 2013-09-01. 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 4 9/26/2013 

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded 
by Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved 
Resolution No. 2013-09-01 for the issuance of three fleet cards. 
 
Resolution No. 2013-09-02, Resolution Authorizing Director Bruszenski as 
Signer on Farmers State Bank Accounts (“Resolution No. 2013-09-02”):  The 
Board entered into discussion regarding Resolution No. 2013-09-02. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, seconded by 
Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved 
Resolution No. 2013-09-02 authorizing Director Bruszenski as a signer/user on 
the Farmers State Bank accounts. 
 
2014 Budget Priorities:  The Board reviewed the revised draft Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget Priorities document which included a list of essential projects for the 
District.  This list will serve as a guide to prepare the 2014 Budget. 
 
Service Connection Fee Policy:  The Board entered into discussion regarding 
the need for a policy regarding the Service Connection Fee. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded 
by Director Pollard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adopted a 
Water Meter Fee in the amount of $400 to be collected in advance of installation 
of water meters, effective October 1, 2013. 
 
Lien Certification Fee:  The Board entered into discussion regarding a Lien 
Certification Fee.  Mr. Gomes explained that the current fee of $50 doesn’t cover 
the cost of both the certification of the lien and release of the lien. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Roberts, seconded by 
Director Burrer and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adopted a revised 
Lien Certification Fee of $200 to cover the cost of preparation, attorney review 
and filing of both documents. 
  
 

LEGAL 
MATTERS 
CONTINUED 
 

 Office Lease:  Directors Burrer and Pollard discussed with the Board the 
Residential Lease for the District’s office and corresponding paperwork from El 
Paso County.  No action was taken at this time. 
 
Authorization for the District’s Water Attorney, Paul G. Anderson, to 
Accept Service of Legal Processes regarding the Meridian Service 
Metropolitan District Notice of Appeal and De Novo Review regarding Case 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 5 9/26/2013 

No. 2013CV031263:  Mr. Gomes explained to the Board that the District’s Water 
Attorney, Paul G. Anderson, accepted service of legal processes for the above-
mentioned case. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded 
by Director Burrer and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board ratified 
authorization for Attorney Anderson to accept service of the documents related to 
the above-mentioned case and also authorized Attorney Anderson to file all 
necessary pleading regarding the case. 
 
District’s Personnel Guidelines:  The Board entered into discussion regarding 
the District’s Personnel Guidelines.  No action was taken by the Board at this 
time. 
  
 

OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE 

 Paint Brush Hills Filing No. 13a Excavation Work:  The Board entered into 
discussion regarding the status of the Paint Brush Hills Filing No. 13a excavation 
work.  It was noted that progress on this project has been delayed due to the 
recent rain. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, seconded by 
Director Pollard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board authorized 
Director Griffin to execute the Water Commitment Letter for up to 133 hours for 
Filings 13B and 14. 
 
Proposal from JDS-Hydro Consultants, Inc. (“JDS”) for Methane Mitigation 
Plan for Well No. 6:  Mr. Gomes reported that JDS is awaiting the completion of 
additional testing on Well No. 6 before creating and submitting their proposal.  
No action was required by the Board at this time. 
 
Water Storage Tank Report/Update: 
 
1.0Mgal Water Storage Tank:  It was noted that this tank is now online. 
 
Drayton Green Park Project:  It was noted that the Drayton Green Park Project 
is complete. 
 
Proposal from Colorado Tree Farm Nursery for Additional Shrubs for Drayton 
Green Park:  The Board reviewed the proposal from Colorado Tree Farm Nursery 
for additional shrubs in the amount of $486.00. 
 
Following review, upon motion duly made by Director Burrer, seconded by 
Director Pollard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 6 9/26/2013 

proposal from Colorado Tree Farm Nursery for additional shrubs in the amount 
of $486.00 and authorized Director Griffin to execute the same. 
  
 

OTHER BUSINESS  Engagement of T. Charles Wilson Insurance Service as the District’s 
Insurance Agent:  The Board entered into discussion regarding the engagement 
of T. Charles Wilson Insurance Service as the District’s insurance agent. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bruszenski, seconded 
by Director Roberts and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the 
engagement of T. Charles Wilson Insurance Service as the District’s insurance 
agent. 
 
Job Descriptions for the District:  Mr. Gomes requested comments from the 
Board on the draft job description documents. 
  
 

ADJOURNMENT  There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon 
motion duly made, seconded and upon vote, unanimously carried, the meeting 
was adjourned. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

By   
Secretary for the Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

 

Page 7 9/26/2013 

THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL SEPTEMBER 26, 
2013 MINUTES OF THE PAINT BRUSH HILLS METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 
 
  
Kim Griffin 
 
  
Calvin Pollard 
 
  
Doug Burrer 
 
  
Floyd Roberts 
 
  
John Bruszenski 

 










	PBHMD October 10, 2013 Agenda
	September 26, 2013 Minutes
	September 26, 2013 Minutes
	AR-M620N_20131003_155926

	WHMD's Notice of Increase for 2014 Rates

